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IN TIlE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

v.

REGINALD DALE AKEEN
(alkJa J.J. LONELODGE),

Defendant.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

No. CR 09- / tJ3 ~ BfC-
INDICTMENT

Count 1
(18 U.S.C. § 371)
Count 2
(16 U.S.C. §§ 3372 {a)(I), 3373(d)(I)(B»
Count 3
(16 U.S.C. §§ 703, 707(b), 18 U.s.C. § 2)

THE GRAND JURy CHARGES:

I. Introduction

A. The Defendant

1. In August and September 0[2007, defendant REGINALD DALE AKEEN

(alkJa J.J. LONELODGE) conspired to illegally sell feathers of a golden eagle for personal profit.
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II. Wildlife Protection Laws

A. The Lacey Act

1. The Lacey Act makes it unlawful for any person to knowingly import,

export, transport, sell, receive, acquire, or purchase any fish or wildlife, whether dead or alive, or

any part or product thereof, taken, possessed, transported or sold in violation of any law, treaty,

or regulation of the United States or in violation of any Indian tribal law. 16 U.S.C. § 3372.

B. The Migratory Bird Treaty Act

1. The Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) makes it unlawful to sell or

barter, or offer for sale or barter, migratory birds. 16 U.S.C. § 703. Title 50 of the Code of

Federal Regulations, Section 10.13, lists all bird species protected under the MBTA, including

the golden eagle (Aquila chrysaetos). The purpose of the MBTA is to protect migratory birds

from, among other things, commercial exploitation, and safeguard their continued survival. The

MBTA implements the United States' commitment to four international conventions (with

Canada, Japan, Mexico, and Russia) for the protection ofa shared natural resource.

2. The MBTA does not discriminate between live or dead birds, and also

includes protection of any bird parts, including feathers, eggs, and nests.

III. Factual Background

A. The Black Market for Eagle Feathers in the United States

1. Feathers ofprotected migratory birds hold a special cultural significance to

many Native American tribes. The feathers are sometimes used as part of religious ceremonies

and dance costumes at Native American pow wows.
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2. Feathers ofprotected migratory birds are also used in lucrative dance

competitions across the country. The dancers at these competitions are judged in part on the

quality of their costumes, or "regalia," and many competitions reward regalia constructed from

eagle feathers. These competitions have surged in popularity in recent years, and many promote

and payout large cash awards for the top fInishers.

3. Young golden eagles, whose tails are made up ofwhite feathers with black

tips, commonly known as "black and whites,""are among the most sought-after feathers for dance

regalia.

4. Because of the high fInancial stakes, these dance competitions have fueled

a black market in eagle parts. To meet the demand for eagle parts, a network of eagle poachers

and traders has emerged.

Count 1
18 U.S.C. § 371
(Conspiracy)

Objects of the Conspiracy

1. Beginning on or about August 17,2007, and ending on or about September 16,

2007, in the District of Oregon and elsewhere, REGINALD DALE AKEEN, defendant herein,

and another person known to the grand jury (the "co-conspirator"), did willfully and knowingly

combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together to commit the following offenses against the

United States:

a) To knowingly sell, offer to sell, and intend to sell wildlife with a market

value in excess of $350, namely: a part ofa golden eagle (Aguila chrysaetos), knowing that the
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wildlife was possessed in violation of, or in a manner unlawful under, the Migratory Bird Treaty

Act, in violation ofthe Lacey Act, Title 16, United States Code, Sections 3372(a)(1) and

3373(d)(1)(B); and

b) To knowingly and unlawfully offer for sale, sell, offer to barter, and barter

a product consisting of and composed in part ofa part of a migratory bird, namely: a golden eagle

(Aquila chrysaetos), in violation of the Migratory Bird Treaty Act, Title 16, United States Code,

Sections 703 and 707(b).

Manner and Means of the Conspiracy

2. The manner and means by which the defendant REGINAI,D DALE AKEEN and

his co-conspirator would and did carry out the conspiracy and effect its unlawful objects

included: locating a buyer ofprotected migratory bird feathers, negotiating and accepting

payment and barter for the sale of the feathers, receiving a commission for the sale, and arranging

for delivery of and delivering the feathers.

Overt Acts

3. In the course of and in furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effect its objects, the

following overt acts, among others, were committed in the District ofOrt:gon and elsewhere:

a) On or about August 17, 2007, defendant REGINALD DALE AKEEN

offered to sell a fan made ofjuvenile golden eagle feathers, also known as

"black and whites," to a buyer;
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b) Defendant REG~ALDDALE AKEEN contacted the co-conspirator in

Oregon, who agreed to sell a nine-feather "black and white" fan to the

buyer;

c) On or about August 28,2007, defendant REGINALD DALE AKEEN

accepted payment for the fan from the buyer, which totaled $1,750 in cash

and bartered items, and included a commission for the sale;

d) On or about September 13,2007, defendant REGINALD DALE AKEEN

arranged a meeting in or around Warm Springs, Oregon, between the co-

conspirator and the buyer's agent to hand-deliver the fan; and

e) On or about September 16, 2007, the co-conspirator hand-delivered the

nine-feather "black and white" fan, made ofjuvenile golden eagle feathers,

to the buyer's agent in Warm Springs, Oregon.

All in violation ofTitle 18, United States Code, Section 371.

Count 2
16 U.S.C. §§ 3372 (a)(1), 3373(d)(1)(B)

(Lacey Act)

4. On or about and between August 17,2007 and September 16, 2007, in the District

of Oregon and elsewhere, defendant REGINALD DALE AKEEN did knowingly sell, offer to

sell, and intend to sell wildlife with a market value in excess of $350, namely: a part ofa golden

eagle (Aguila chrysaetos), knowing that the wildlife was possessed in violation of, or in a manner

unlawful under, the Migratory Bird Treaty Act, in violation of Title 16, United States Code,

Sections 3372(a)(I) and 3373(d)(l)(B).
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Count 3
16 U.S.C. §§ 703, 707(b), 18 U.S.C. §2

(Migratory Bird Treaty Act)

5. On or about and between August 17,2007 and September 16,2007, in the District

of Oregon and elsewhere, defendant REGINALD DALE AKEEN, did knowingly and

unlawfully offer for sale, sell, offer to barter, and barter a product consisting of and composed of

a part ofa migratory bird, namely: a golden eagle (Aquila chrysaetos), in violation of the

Migratory Bird Treaty Act, Title 16, United States Code, Sections 703 and 707(b) and Title 18,

United States Code Section 2.

FORFEITURE ALLEGAnONS

Upon conviction of the offense in violation of the Lacey Act (16 U.S.C. §§ 3372 and

3373(d)(1)(B», set forth in Count Two of this Indictment, defendant REGINALD DALE

AKEEN shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to 16 U.S.C. § 3374 and 28 U.S.c. § 2461, all

wildlife imported, exported, transported, sold, received, acquired, or purchased contrary to the

provisions of 16 U.S.C. § 3372, or any regulation issued pursuant thereto!. and all equipment used

to aid in the importing, exporting, transporting, selling, receiving, acquiring, or purchasing of

wildlife in violation of 16 U.S.C. § 3372.
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DATED this I1...-ttiay Of__~~_· ,2009.

A TRUE BILL.

FOREPERs0N 7 #

By:

KARIN J. IMMERGUT
United States Attorney
District of Oregon

~1~m!1
S ACIE F. BE RMAN
Assistant United States Attorney
District ofOregon
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